
 

August 22, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 28 

OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 
 

August 22, 2019 
REGULAR MEETING 

OPEN SESSION 7:00 PM 
AGENDA 

 
 

CITY OF OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
CHAIR:  Damon Robinson 
VICE-CHAIR:  Carl Durling 
MEMBERS:  Randy Chapman; Wyatt Jenkins; Michael Britton, Tammy Flicker, Susan Sears 
 

 
ALL MEETINGS ARE RECORDED AND BROADCAST LIVE 

 
This meeting may be broadcast remotely via audio and/or video conference at the following address: 

Cota Cole, LLP, 2261 Lava Ridge Court, Roseville, California 95661. 
Meeting is streamed live at cityoforoville.org and on YouTube  

 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

Commissioners: Tammy Flicker, Michael Britton, Randy Chapman, Wyatt Jenkins, Susan Sears, Vice 
Chairperson Carl Durling, Chairperson Damon Robison 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

INSTRUCTIONS TO INDIVIDUALS WHO WISH TO SPEAK 

If you would like to address the commission at this meeting, you are requested to complete the 
blue speaker request form (located on the wall by the agendas) and hand it to the City Clerk, who 
is seated on the right of the Council Chamber.  The form assists the Clerk with minute taking and 
assists the Mayor or presiding chair in conducting an orderly meeting. Providing personal 
information on the form is voluntary.  For scheduled agenda items, please submit the form prior 
to the conclusion of the staff presentation for that item.  The Commission has established time 
limitations of three (3) minutes per speaker on all items and an overall time limit of thirty minutes for non-
agenda items. If more than 10 speaker cards are submitted for non-agenda items, the time limitation 
would be reduced to two minutes per speaker. If more than 15 speaker cards are submitted for non-
agenda items, the first 15 speakers will be randomly selected to speak at the beginning of the meeting, 
with the remaining speakers given an opportunity at the end. (California Government Code 
§54954.3(b)). Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2, the commission is prohibited from taking 
action except for a brief response from the Council or staff to statements or questions relating to a non-
agenda item. 

 

1



 

August 22, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 28 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning Commission on any subject not on the 
agenda related to the Planning Commission. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Approval of the Minutes of the June 27, 2019 and July 10, 2019 Planning Commission 
Meetings  

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

The Public Hearing Procedure is as follows: 

 Chairperson opens the public hearing. 

 Staff and Applicant introduce item and take questions from the Commissioners 

 Speakers are requested to provide a speaker card to the City Clerk.  

 Hearing is opened for public comment limited to three (3) minutes. Under Government Code 
54954.3. the time for each presentation may be limited. 

 Public comment session is closed 

 Commissioners, discuss, debate and action. 

  

2. SIGN PROGRAM AT KENTUCKY FRIED CHICKEN RESTAURANT (KFC) 

The Planning Commission may conduct a public hearing to consider an application to approve 
part of the KFC proposed sign program (#B1907-055).   

RECOMMENDATION  

Conditionally approve the Sign Program application at the new KFC restaurant at 660 Oro Dam 
Boulevard, subject to future review of the Freestanding Sign. 

Delegate review of freestanding sign to the Zoning Administrator, when submitted, as long as it 
is no higher than 40 feet or larger than 50 square feet per side. 

 

REGULAR BUSINESS 

3. REQUEST FOR STREET NAMES 

The commission may approve the two proposed street names. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approving the names suggested and adding them to the City Map. 

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

The Director shall report on information pertinent to the Planning Commission. 

2



 

August 22, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 3 of 28 

 

COMMISSION REPORTS 

Reports by commission members on information pertinent to the Planning Commission. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourn to September 26, 2019 at 7:00 P.M. in the Oroville City Council Chambers 

 

***  NOTICE *** 

Accommodating Those Individuals with Special Needs – In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 

Act, the City of Oroville encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public meeting process. If 

you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in our public meetings, please 

contact the City Clerk at (530) 538-2535, well in advance of the regular meeting you wish to attend, so that 

we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. Documents distributed for public session items, 

less than 72 hours prior to meeting, are available for public inspection at City Hall, 1735 Montgomery Street, 

Oroville, California. 

***  NOTICE *** 

Any person who is dissatisfied with the decisions of this Planning Commission may appeal to the 

City Council by filing with the Zoning Administrator within fifteen days from the date of the action.  A 

written notice of appeal specifying the grounds and an appeal fee immediately payable to the City 

of Oroville must be submitted at the time of filing.  The Oroville City Council may sustain, modify or 

overrule this decision. 

 

  

3



 

June 27, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 
 

June 27, 2019 
MINUTES 

 
 

The Agenda for this meeting was posted on June 20, 2019. The meeting was recorded live and can be 
viewed at cityoforoville.org or no YouTube.  

 
CALL TO ORDER – Chairperson Robison called the meeting to order at 7:00pm.  

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT:  Commissioners: Susan Sears, Randy Chapman, Wyatt Jenkins, Tammy Flicker, Vice 
Chairperson Carl Durling, Chairperson Damon Robison 

ABSENT: Commissioner Michael Britton 

STAFF: Principle Planner Wes Ervin, Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Led by Chairperson Robison  

Chairperson Robison announced that Item #1 would need to be continued due to improper notification 
to the public.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS - There were no public speakers.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion by Commissioner Sears and second by Commissioner Flicker to approve the Minutes from June 

6, 2019 with the following changes: 

a. Add – Applicant Jim Moll Spoke to item number one.  

b. Add – Excused Absence under attendance for Damon Robison  

AYES:   Commissioners: Flicker, Jenkins, Durling, Sears, Robison 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: Commissioner Chapman  
ABSENT:  Commissioner Britton  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. USE PERMIT - EMERGENCY SHELTER - 3010 MYERS STREET 

The Planning Commission continued to July 10, 2019 a public hearing to consider approving a 
Use Permit to change the use of a previous pharmacy to an emergency shelter for up to 25 
homeless individuals located at 3010 Myers Street, Oroville, CA.    

4



 

June 27, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

Motion by Commissioner Sears and second by Commissioner Chapman to continue this item to 
July 10, 2019 at 7pm. Motion Passed 

AYES:   Commissioners: Flicker, Jenkins, Chapman, Durling, Sears, Robison 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT:  Commissioner Britton  
 
DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Principal Planner Wes Ervin - 

o Staff will ask the council for direction regarding updating the sphere of influence to 
include an area by Wilber road.  

o Asking Council to direct staff to update the General Plan and Zoning Maps to reflect the 
South Oroville Annexation 

o Authorize staff to begin the annexation process of the Reedy Creek Subdivision.  

There will not be a regular Planning Commission meeting in July.  

COMMISSION REPORTS 

Commissioner Flicker – Attended the 2019 Planning Commission Training Workshop in Sacramento 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

The Commission re-opened public comment. There were not speakers.  

ADJOURNMENT 

The Planning Commission adjourned at 7:15pm to July 10, 2019 at 7pm.  

 

APPROVED:        ATTESTED: 

 

_____________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Damon Robison, Chair     Jackie Glover, Assistant City Clerk 

 

5



 

July 10, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

OROVILLE PLANNING COMMISSION 
Council Chambers 

1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA. 95965 

 
 

July 10, 2019 
MINUTES 

 

 
The agenda for this meeting was posted on July 3, 2019. 

 

CALL TO ORDER – Chairperson Durling opened the meeting at 7:03pm 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT:  Commissioners: Susan Sears, Randy Chapman, Tammy Flicker, Carl Durling 

ABSENT:   Commissioner Michael Britton, Wyatt Jenkins, Damon Robison 

STAFF PRESENT:  Principal Planner Wes Ervin, Assistant City Clerk Jackie Glover 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Led by Chairperson Durling  

CORRESPONDENCE 

The Planning Commission received several letters and petition signatures both for and against the 
Haven of Hope Emergency Shelter. The items were available for viewing at the meeting.   

PUBLIC HEARING 

1. USE PERMIT - EMERGENCY SHELTER - 3010 MYERS STREET 

The Planning Commission held a public hearing to consider approving a Use Permit to change 
the use of a previous pharmacy to an emergency shelter for up to 25 homeless individuals 
located at 3010 Myers Street, Oroville, CA.    

Staff presented the item and the applicant, Kevin Thompson, spoke on the item.  

Public Speakers who spoke on this item are listed below: 

 Cheri Bunker 

 Bill Wilson 

 Earl Lewis 

 Stephanie Smith 

 Kasey Boone 

 William Bynum 

 Jaki Walker 

 Brad Jackson 

 Celeste Garcia 

 Jeannie Maes 

 Pamela Leis 

 Allan Young 

 Lisa Torres 

 Eric 

 Jennette Rummell 

 Bernadette North 

 Auna Cardenas 

 Marlene Del Rosario 

 Dave Garcia 

 Pastor David Goodson 

 Tom Oxford 

 Carol Anderson  

 Carlie Aire

6



 

July 10, 2019~7:00 PM Planning Commission Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

A Motion to table this agenda item was made by Commissioner Flicker and second by 
Commissioner Sears. Commissioner Flicker amended the motion and it was seconded by 
Commissioner Sears to state that the item will be continued to October 24th. Motion passed.  

AYES:   Commissioner Sears, Chapman, Flicker, Durling 
NOES:  None 
ABSTAIN:  None 
ABSENT:  Commissioners Britton, Jenkins and Robison  

 
ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 8:37pm. The Planning Commission adjourned until their next regularly scheduled 
meeting on August 22, 2019 at 7pm. 

 
APPROVED:      ATTESTED: 
 
 
____________________________________ ________________________________________ 
Vice Chair, Carl Durling    Assistant City Clerk, Jackie Glover 

 

7



 1 

 

City of Oroville 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2436   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 

        

 DISCUSSION 

The attached proposed sign program (#B1907-055) will decorate the KFC Drive-thru 
restaurant, which was approved by the Planning Commission on June 27, 2017 (Use 
Permit 17-04), and which is now under construction. The signs, colors and lettering 
appear to conform to KFC’s current corporate design. 

All sign programs -- multiple signs on a single site -- are subject to Design Review. 
This project is therefore put to the Planning Commission, which is currently acting as 
the City’s Design Review Board.  As required in OMC 17.52.020 D, notice of this 
review was mailed more than 10 days ago to all property owners within 300 feet of 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT Thursday, August 22, 2019 

RE: Sign Program at Kentucky Fried Chicken Restaurant (KFC) 

SUMMARY: The owners of the new Kentucky Fried Chicken Restaurant, now under 
construction at 660 Oroville Dam Boulevard, have submitted an application to approve part of 
their proposed sign program (#B1907-055).   

RECOMMENDATION:   

1) Conditionally approve the Sign Program application at the new KFC restaurant at 660 Oro 
Dam Boulevard, subject to future review of the Freestanding Sign. 

2) Delegate review of freestanding sign to the Zoning Administrator, when submitted, as long 
as it is no higher than 40 feet or larger than 50 square feet per side.  

 

APPLICANTS: McHale Sign Company 

LOCATION:   
660 Oroville Dam Blvd,  
Oroville, CA 95965  

 

 

GENERAL PLAN:  MU (Mixed Use) 

ZONING:  MXC (Corridor Mixed Use) 

FLOOD ZONE:  X 

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:   Exempt, part of previously approved project. 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Wes Ervin, Senior Planner 
Community Development Department 

REVIEWED BY: 

 

 

___________________________ 
Leo DePaola, Director 
Community Development Director 

Leo DePaola 
Community Development Director 

 

8



 2 

the property, and also published in the local newspaper.  

Note that applicant is still designing a planned freestanding (pole) sign, which is also 
subject to Design Review by the Planning Commission unless delegated to the 
Zoning Administrator. Because KFC has 145 feet of frontage along Oro Dam Blvd., 
the maximum freestanding sign can be 50 square feet per side, no more than 40 feet 
tall, and illuminated. It must meet all requirements of Oroville Municipal Code (OMC) 
17.20.070 D.  If a balloon test shows that a higher sign is needed for visibility from 
Highway 70, the Planning Commission can approve up to 60 feet. 

Table 17.20.120-3 limits the maximum square footage of all signs in a sign program 
to 330 square feet for a 3,133 sf building (300 sf + 10%).  

Assuming KFC later proposes the maximum allowable freestanding sign of 50 square 
feet per side, The total square footage of all signs would be 309 square feet, or 21 
square feet under the maximum.  
 

REQUIRED DETERMINATIONS (OMC 17.20.080 E) 

1. The signs included in this sign program have one or more common design 
elements, including placement, colors, materials, sigh type, sign shape, letter size 
and lettering type; 

2. The colors, materials, size and placement of the signs are compatible with the 
materials, architecture and scale of the buildings and signs on the site, and on 
other sites in the area; 

3. The number and placement of signs in this sign program are compatible with the 
number and placement of signs on other nearby properties; 

4. The signs in this sign program conform to the requirements of Oroville City Code 
17.20.080, as well as any applicable specific plan or design guidelines adopted by 
the City Council. 

 
 

PROPOSED CONDITIONS 

1. This approval does not include the planned freestanding sign, which when 
designed must be submitted for review and approval;  

2. All illuminated signs shall meet the requirements of OMC Section 17.12.010. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Proposed Sign Program overview drawings (details available for review) 
B. Use Permit 17-04 Letter of Approval (TRAKiT PL1706-001)  
  

 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



1 
 

City of Oroville 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 
1735 Montgomery Street 
Oroville, CA  95965-4897    
(530) 538-2430   FAX (530) 538-2426 
www.cityoforoville.org 
 

 
June 27, 2017 
 

LETTER OF APPROVAL 
 

RE: UP 17-04: KFC Drive-Thru Restaurant 
 
Dear Mr. Sorrell, 
 
On June 22, 2017, the Oroville City Planning Commission conducted a public hearing 
and approved Use Permit No. 17-04 for the construction of a new KFC drive-thru 
restaurant on the partially developed lot identified as APN: 035-260-083. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
Approved project: The project applicant, Clifton E. Sorrell Jr. with VMI Architecture, 
Inc., has applied for a use permit (UP 17-04) for the construction of a new KFC drive-
thru restaurant on the partially developed lot identified as APN: 035-260-083 located on 
the north side of Oro Dam Blvd East between CVS Pharmacy (850 Oroville Dam Blvd 
East) and Americas Best Value Inn & Suites (580 Oro Dam Blvd East). The property 
has a zoning land use designation of Corridor Mixed-Use (MXC). The proposed 
restaurant is a use permitted by right in an MXC district. However, any drive-thru in an 
MXC district requires a use permit. The restaurant will be approximately 3,133 square 
feet in size with 52 seats to serve customers. The drive-thru will have a 10-car stack 
and the intended hours of operation are from 10:00am to 10:00pm. 

The Planning Commission hereby approves UP 17-04, subject to the following:  
 
1. The applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council members, Planning 

Commissioners, officers, agents, employees, and representatives from liability for 
any award, damages, costs, and/or fees incurred by the City and/or awarded to 
any plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this permit or any environmental 
or other documentation related to approval of this permit. Applicant further agrees 
to provide a defense for the City in any such action. 

 
2. The project shall remain in substantial conformance with the Conditions of 

Approval, as adopted by the Oroville Planning Commission. Any subsequent minor 
changes in the project (as determined by the Zoning Administrator) may only occur 

Donald Rust 
DIRECTOR 

19



2 
 

subject to appropriate City review and approval. Any subsequent substantive 
changes in the project (as determined by the Zoning Administrator) may only occur 
subject to discretionary review by the Oroville Planning Commission.  

 
3. The applicants shall have a current City of Oroville business license and any other 

applicable permit/license that may be required as part of their business operations. 
 
4. Pursuant to Section 17.12.010, the proposed use of the site shall conform to the 

performance standards of the Oroville Municipal Code to minimize any potential 
negative effects that the building, structure or use could have on its surroundings, 
and to promote compatibility with surrounding uses and areas. 

 
5. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with all requirements of the Butte County 

Environmental Health. 
 

6. Applicable construction plans, calculations, specifications, applications, forms, etc. 
shall be submitted to the Building Division for review prior to the start of any 
construction activities requiring a building permit. All applicable plan review fees 
shall be paid at time of submittal. 

 
7. A grease trap or interceptor shall be installed as required by the City. The trap or 

interceptor shall be cleaned weekly or more frequently as needed. A grease trap or 
interceptor maintenance log shall be kept to record cleanings and maintenance. 
The date, time, type of service, and the name of the person (and business if 
performed by an outside contractor) performing the service shall be recorded. The 
trap or interceptor and maintenance log shall be made available for inspection as 
requested. 
 

8. The applicant shall ascertain and comply with the requirements of all City, County, 
State, Federal, and other local agencies as applicable to the proposed project.  

 
9. Under no circumstance shall vehicle queueing on the project site spillback onto 

Oro Dam Boulevard East (SR 162). 
 

10. The project shall comply with the City’s noise ordinance as found in the OMC 
Chapter 9.20. 

 
11. All grading, paving, excavation and site clearance, including that which is exempt 

from obtaining a permit, shall be performed in conformance with the City’s 
Engineering Design Standards; the Municipal Code; the requirements of the State 
Regional Water Quality Control Board; and any other applicable local, state and 
federal requirements. 

 
12. All construction projects are required to implement dust control measures to 

reduce particulate matter emissions due to disturbance of exposed top-soils, such 
as watering of active areas where disturbance occurs, covering haul loads, 

20



3 
 

maintaining clean access roads, and cleaning the wheels of construction vehicles 
accessing disturbed areas of the site.  

 
13. All grading and paving shall be conducted in compliance with the Butte County Air 

Quality Management District’s Indirect Source Guidelines, in order to prevent 
degradation of ambient air quality.   

 
14. The applicant shall pay a fair share contribution for their impacts to Oro Dam 

Boulevard in the amount of $87,000 prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 

15. All applicable development impact fees shall be paid prior to issuance of a building 
permit. 

 
16. Pursuant to Section 17.12.050(L), the property owner shall enter into a written 

agreement for the installation and maintenance of landscaping. The agreement 
shall be in a form approved by the City Attorney and Zoning Administrator and 
suitable for recordation with the Butte County recorder. The agreement shall be 
binding upon the property owner and any successors in interest. 

 
17. Pursuant to Section 17.08.135, the project shall install public art on the project site 

in a public place as approved by the City Council. The cost of the public art must 
be equal to at least one percent (1%) of the estimated construction costs. The 
developer has the option to opt out of this requirement and instead pay the 
equivalent in lieu fee which shall be a one percent (1%) fee of the estimated 
construction costs. 

 
18. Pursuant to Section 17.48.010(F) of the City Code, the Planning Commission, 

upon its own motion, may modify or revoke any use permit that has been granted 
pursuant to the provisions of this section upon finding any of the following, based 
on substantial evidence: 
 

a.  Any of the conditions of the permit have not been satisfied within 1 year 
after it was granted. 

b.  Any of the terms or conditions of the permit have been violated. 

c.  A law, including any requirement in the Municipal Code Chapter 26, has 
been violated in connection with the permit. 

d.  The permit was obtained by fraud. 
 

19. Applicant hereby certifies that any and all statements and information provided as 
part of the application are true and correct to the best of their knowledge and 
belief. Any misinformation provided, whether intentional or unintentional, that was 
considered in the issuance of this permit may be grounds for revocation. 
 

 --- End of Conditions --- 
 

21



4 
 

If you have questions about the information in this letter, please contact me by e-mail at 
ltopete@cityoforoville.org or by phone at (530) 538-2408. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
 
 

Luis A. Topete 
Associate Planner  

22



23



24



25



Page 1 

 
CITY OF OROVILLE 

STAFF REPORT 

 
 

 
TO: PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS 

FROM: MIKE MASSARO, CONTRACT CITY ENGINEER 

RE: REQUEST FOR STREET NAMES 

DATE: AUGUST 22, 2019 

SUMMARY 

The commission may approve the two proposed names for consideration of two streets. 

DISCUSSION 

The Acacia Estates subdivision was annexed in to the City on August 5, of 2008. The 
adopted parcel map included 20 future parcels with two courts with names listed as 
“Parkwood Court” and “Phyllodes Court”.  The 14 parcels on the “Phyllodes Court” are 
moving forward for development and final conditions of approval for building homes are being 
met. The developer and land owner has asked for a name change of the street from 
“Phyllodes Court” to “Hawley Trail”. This name has been vetted by City Planning and GIS 
staff and does not conflict with existing names in the City or County. Staff have agreed to 
move the request forward to planning commission for conditions and approval. 

Conner property on Valley View Drive was recently subdivided and driveway needs to be 
converted to Court access to two distinct parcels. Property owners have requested access 
road be named “Conner Court”. This name has been vetted by City Planning and GIS staff 
and does not conflict with existing names in the City or County. Staff have agreed to move the 
request forward to planning commission for conditions and approval. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

A. None 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends approving the names suggested and adding them to the City Map. 

ATTACHMENTS 

Google Maps image of future street/court – Hawley Trail 
Google Maps image of future street/court – Conner Court 
 

26



8/16/2019 Acacia Ave - Google Maps

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Acacia+Ave,+Oroville,+CA+95966/@39.5214187,-121.5346217,317m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x809cb67ece… 1/1

Imagery ©2019 Google, Map data ©2019 100 ft 

Acacia Ave
Oroville, CA 95966

Directions Save Nearby Send to your
phone

Share

Acacia Ave

Acacia Estates - future Hawley Trail

27



8/16/2019 Valley View Dr - Google Maps

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Valley+View+Dr,+Oroville,+CA+95966/@39.5228361,-121.5250596,307m/data=!3m1!1e3!4m5!3m4!1s0x809cb66… 1/1

Imagery ©2019 Google, Map data ©2019 100 ft 

Valley View Dr

Future Conner Court

28


	Top
	1. Sign Program at Kentucky Fried Chicken Restaurant (KFC)
	KFC sign program DRC staff report
	KFC Sign program application
	KFC drive thru Letter of Approval June 27, 2017
	KFC sign drawings overview

	2. Street Name Change Requests
	Staff Report_Street Name Changes_20190822
	Acacia Estates - Hawley Trail name change Exhibit
	Valley View Dr - Conner Court Name change Exhibit

	Bottom

